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JUDGE McGUIRE: This hearing iIs now in order.
Counsel, 1™m glad to see everyone back. 1 hope
everyone had a good and happy holiday.

Before we start today, are there any
housekeeping items that we need to take up?

MR. OLIVER: No, Your Honor.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Then -- Mr. Perry?

MR. PERRY: Your Honor, we had spoken on

Thursday about moving some exhibits in this morning

from Thursday"s session. 1 think we may have to do
that tomorrow morning. 1 think everybody is not quite
ready.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Okay, good enough.

Then at this time, complaint counsel may call
Its next witness.

MR. OLIVER: Thank you, Your Honor. Complaint
counsel calls Mr. Richard Crisp.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Okay, Mr. Crisp, would you
please approach the Bench and the court reporter will
swear you in.

Whereupon--

XN 4LCA D S5

a witness, called for examination, having been first
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duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

JUDGE McGUIRE: Sir, havela seat, if|you Jill.
Mr. Oliver, you may procegd.
Yes, let"s close that doof back therg if
someone doesn"t mind.
Oh EC. E A éln 40
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Good morning, Mr. Crisp.

A. Good morning, Mr. Oliver.

Q. How are you today?

A. I1™m doing fine, thanks.

Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, at one point in time were you
employed at Rambus?

A. Yes, I was.

Q. During what time period were you employed at
Rambus?

A. 1 was employed from October 1991 until June of
2000.

Q. When you left Rambus, did you have any type of
consulting agreement with Rambus?

A. Yes, 1 did.

Q. When you left Rambus, did you hold any Rambus
stock?

A. 1"m amRambus Rre you fet"sTo9aay as Ramr quolloon Q. When
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stock?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. When you left Rambus, did you hold any Rambus
stock options?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, I also understand that at
the -- as a result of leaving Rambus, you were iIn a
financial position that you did not have to start work
again until fairly recently. 1Is that correct?

A. I"m sorry, | couldn®t understand your question.

Q. Yes. At the time that you left Rambus, you
were in a sufficient financial position that you did
not have to start work again until fairly recently. Is
that correct?

A. 1 think that"s largely true.

Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, were you deposed iIn the
Infineon case?

A. Yes, I was.

Q. And you testified in the Infineon case?

A. That"s correct.

Q. Were you represented by counsel in that case?

A. Yes, I was.

Q. Who was your counsel?

A. You mean the name of the firm or --

Q. Yes, the name of the firm.
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A. It was also Gray Cary.

Q. Again, the same firm that represented Rambus in
that litigation?

A. 1 believe that Gray Cary was representing
Rambus in the Micron case. 1°m not certain of that.

Q. Who paid your legal counsel in connection with
the Micron litigation?

A. 1 assume Rambus did.

Q. In any event, you did not pay for your legal
counsel iIn that matter?

A. That"s correct.

Q. Did Rambus compensate you in any way in
connection with the preparation for your deposition
testimony in the Micron matter?

A. Yes, they did.

Q. Mr. Crisp, are you aware that you have been
identified by name in the Federal Trade Commission®s
complaint In this matter?

A. I™m not sure what you mean by "identified by
name."

Q. Are you aware that your name appears in the
Federal Trade Commission®s complaint in this matter?

A. 1 think I am, yes.

Q. Are you represented by counsel iIn connection

with this proceeding?
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A. Yes, I am.

Q. Who is your counsel in connection with this
proceeding?

A. Munger, Tolles & Olson.

Q. Are you paying Munger Tolles counsel yourself?

A. No, I"m not.

Q. Do you understand who is paying counsel on your
behal ?

A. 1 presume Rambus 1is.

Q. Has Rambus compensated you In any way in
connection with the preparation for deposition or trial
testimony in this matter?

A. Yes, | had to take my vacation time, so | asked
to be compensated.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document that"s
been marked as CX-1454. This is a copy of Rambus*
patent application published under the Patent
Cooperation Treaty.

Do you recognize this document?
A. 1 don"t believe 1"ve ever seen it.
Q. Do you recognize CX-1454 as being virtually

identical to the initial patent application filed by
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A. Would that be the numbers in the lower
right-hand corner?

Q. Yes, it would.

A. Okay. 1"m on that page.

Q. Do you see a drawing on the bottom of that
page?

A. 1 see a Figure 3 drawing.

Q. Okay, if you could please compare Figure 3 to
the figure appearing on the first page of CX-1454, do
those appear to you to be the identical figure?

A. They look very similar to me.

Q. Now, that Figure 3 appearing on page 129 of
CX-1451 and appearing on the first page of 1454, that
represents a number of Rambus memory chips on a bus.
Is that correct?

A. That"s my interpretation, yes.

Q. The object on the right-hand side of that
drawing represents what"s referred to as a master?

A. 1t could be called a master, yes.

Q. And that master could be a CPU or a central
processing unit. Is that right?

A. It"s possible, it could be.

Q. And the objects on the left-hand side represent
individual RDRAM chips. 1Is that right?

A. Yes, that"s right.
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Q. And the lines running between the master and
the memory chips are the bus lines?

A. That"s what 1*d call them.
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back to CX-1451, please, and if I could ask you to
turn, please, to page 9.

Now, underneath Summary of the Invention, do
you see that caption?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Let me read part of that paragraph, and then
111 follow up with some questions.

"The present invention includes a memory
subsystem comprising at least two semiconductor
devices, including at least one memory device,
connected in parallel to a bus, where the bus includes
a plurality of bus lines for carrying substantially all
address, data and control information needed by said
memory devices, where the control information includes
device-select information and the bus has substantially
fewer bus lines than the number of bits iIn a single
address."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, 1 do.

Q. Now, most synchronous memory devices sold iIn
the early 1990s had more bus lines than the number of
bits in a single address. Isn"t that right?

A. I™m sorry, at what point In time?

Q. The early 1990s.

A. And you said synchronous memory devices. Was
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there a particular type of synchronous memory device
you had in mind?

Q. I misspoke, asynchronous memory devices.

A. You mean nonsynchronous?

Q. Yes.

A. Okay, now, could you ask the question again?
I"m sorry.

Q. Yes. In the early 1990s, most asynchronous
memory devices sold had more bus lines than the number
of bits In a single address. Isn"t that right?

A. 1 —- 1 believe that"s correct.

Q. And during the 1992 time frame, you"re aware
that JEDEC was working on a standard for synchronous

DRAMs that would have contained more bus lines than the

number of bits In a single address. Isn"t that
correct?

A. I"m really not sure how to answer that. |1
think they were -- if I can -- it"s been a long time,
but 1f I can remember correctly, they -- they were
working on a -- a number of different devices, some of
which were narrow bus devices, some of which had -- by
"bus,”™ | mean the data bus -- some of which were very

wide bus devices, depending on the application. So,
I"m not quite sure how to answer your question.

Q. Well, the standard for synchronous DRAM that
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JEDEC adopted contained more bus lines than the number
of bits In a single address. Isn"t that correct?

A. 1 don"t -- 1 don"t believe I could agree with
that completely.

Q. Okay. Well, there will be other testimony in
the record on that point.

MR. PERRY: Your Honor, can we avoid the
comments by counsel like that, please?

JUDGE McGUIRE: So noted, Mr. Perry.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Let me continue on page 9, please. The last
three lines in that paragraph read, "and the bus
carries device-select information without the need for
separate device-select lines connected directly to
individual devices.™

Do you see that?

A. I™m sorry, could you give me the line numbers?
I was trying to follow it, and I just haven"t seen
this.

Q. On page 9 --

A. Yes.
Q. -- lines 17 through 19.
A. Okay, I see those lines.

Q. It reads towards the end of line 17, "the bus

carries device-select information without the need for

For The Record, Inc.Waldorf, Maryland(301) 870-8025



2922
2922

separate device-select lines connected directly to
individual devices."
Do you see that?

A. Yes, I do, sir.

Q. Now, in the early 1990s, most asynchronous
memory devices sold had separate device-select lines
connected directly to individual devices, didn*t they?

A. Again, if you could narrow the type of memory
device to which you"re referring, it would be easier
for me to answer.

Q. Let me ask a different question. The -- the
JEDEC standard for synchronous DRAMs, that standard
provided for separate device lines connected directly
to the individual devices, didn"t 1t?

A. Yes, that"s true.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Go ahead.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document that"s
been marked as CX-1320. This is a document that you
prepared, isn"t it?

A. 1t looks very familiar.

Q. Do you see in the lower left-hand corner, the
lead slide, your name, R. Crisp?

A. I™m having a little difficulty reading that. |
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need to see 1f I can put on a different set of glasses.

JUDGE McGUIRE: 1It"s on your screen there, Mr.
Crisp.

THE WITNESS: Oh, okay, thank you. Thank you,
Your Honor. Yes, | do see that. Thank you.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. And CX-1320 is a document in which you describe
certain aspects of SDRAMs. Is that right?

A. That"s right, yes.

Q. And if I could direct your attention to the
first page, the figure in the upper right-hand corner,
do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. And that"s a page which you set forth --
diagram a typical SDRAM system topology?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That drawing in the upper left-hand slide shows
a master device on the left-hand side of the drawing.
Is that correct?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. I believe i1t"s marked -- actually, I can"t read
it, so I won"t try.

On the right-hand side, it shows SDRAM chips.
Is that right?

A. It shows SDRAM chips located on -- or actually,
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affixed to what I would call a memory module.

Q. Okay. I believe that they are labeled banks in
the drawing. |Is that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s right.

Q. And that"s what you were referring to as
modules?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. So, each module would be represented by a
vertical box containing four devices. Is that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. And the drawing shows four such groupings of
devices?

A. Yes.

Q. And the various lines running between the
master and the various SDRAM chips are the bus lines.
Is that right?

A. 1 would have a hard time characterizing all of
those lines as bus lines, but there certainly are some
of them that 1 would characterize that way.

Q. And many of those lines actually represent
multiple lines. Is that correct?

A. Yes, sir. |In fact, I think all of them --
those heavy lines represent multiple -- or groupings of
wires, yes.

Q. Now, do you see some lines running from the
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master on the left down towards the bottom of the
slide, then across to the right, and then up to the
various banks?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Now, those represent chip-select lines, right?

A. They actually represent more than chip-select
lines.

Q. But among other things, they represent
chip-select lines. 1Is that right?

A. That"s correct, yes.

Q. Now, this figure in the upper right-hand slide
on page 1 of CX-1320 illustrates generally the type of
DRAM interface that JEDEC was working on in the 1991 to
1993 time period. Isn"t that right?

A. It represents one kind of DRAM interface that
JEDEC was working on within that time frame.

Q. Well, it represents the kind of interface that
JEDEC standardized in its SDRAM standard. |Is that
right?

A. Yes, sir, that -- it does represent that, yes.

Q. And if I could ask you to turn back, please, to
page 1 of CX-1454, the figure we were looking at
earlier. Do you see that figure?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. That figure does not contain any separate
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device-select lines, does it?

A. 1 see nothing that"s denoted on here as to what
any of those lines are, so other than my knowledge that
this 1s designed to pertain to an RDRAM system, |
wouldn®t have any way of answering that question.

Q. Well, based on your knowledge that this is --
strike that.

Based on your knowledge of the RDRAM system,
you recognize that the figure on page 1 of CX-1454 does
not contain any separate device-select lines. Isn"t
that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, when you first read the
original 1990 application, you believed it was limited
to configurations which shared the data and address
lines, a packet bus, narrow high-speed clock devices
and signals moving iIn opposite directions on the clock.
Isn"t that right?

A. 1 believe that"s correct.

Q. In other words, when you read the initial
Farmwald-Horowitz application back in the early 1990s,
you initially believed it was an RDRAM patent. Isn"t
that right?

MR. PERRY: Objection, that"s vague as to what

he means by "*RDRAM patent.™
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JUDGE McGUIRE: Any comment on that, Mr.
Oliver?

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, this is something on
which he testified iIn the Infineon trial, and he
answered almost precisely this question in the Infineon
trial.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Overruled. 1711 entertain the
question.

THE WITNESS: I1"m sorry, would you ask the
question again, please?

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Yes. When you read the initial
Farmwald-Horowitz application back iIn the early 1990s,
you initially believed it was an RDRAM patent. Isn"t
that right?

A. Actually, 1 believed it was an application that
was designed to describe the RDRAM system invention.

Q. And you believed in your words that it was
limited to RDRAM when you initially reviewed it. Isn"t
that right?

A. 1 have no reason to dispute that 1 said that
previously, but 1 think 1t also covered the controllers
as well.

Q. But over time, would it be fair to say that

your view as to whether the initial application would
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cover RDRAM or could also cover other architectures
changed?

A. 1 think the answer is yes.

Q. And over time, from 1992 on, the claims that
were attached to the initial application also changed.
Isn"t that right?

A. I'm not sure that the claims in the initial
application changed. 1 think there were some other
cases or other applications that had originated from
this original application, and | believe that as time
went on, those -- there were some changes to some of
those claims.

Q. Okay. So, it would be fair to say, then, that
claims were added after 1992?

A. 1 believe that that"s true, yes.

Q. And that there were also amendments made to
certain of those claims over time?

A. 1 generally believe that that"s true, yes.

Q. And those changes in claims were made by
various individuals at Rambus working with patent
lawyers. Is that right?

A. 1 don"t believe that"s correct.

Q. The claims were -- excuse me, the changes to
claims were made by patent lawyers. Isn"t that right?

A. That"s my understanding, yes, Sir.
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Q. And various individuals at Rambus worked with

patent lawyers with respect to claims. Isn"t that
right?
A. Well, you say "worked with.” 1"m not sure

precisely what you have In mind.

Q. Various individuals at Rambus had discussions
with patent lawyers with respect to proposed claims.
Isn"t that right?

A. 1 believe that"s correct, yes.

Q. And you were among those individuals that had
discussions with patent lawyers. Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, I am.

Q. And In many instances -- strike that.

In a number of iInstances, you were proposing
ideas for new claims. Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, I believe you testified that
you joined Rambus in late 1991. Is that right?

A. That"s correct.

Q. And beginning in May 1992 and continuing until
Rambus withdrew from JEDEC, you were Rambus® primary
representative at the JEDEC JC-42.3 subcommittee?

A. That"s correct, yes.

Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, Rambus didn"t really care what

the JEDEC standard would be, did i1it?
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I"m not exactly sure exactly what you"re asking.

Q. I1™m asking, Rambus never had any plans to
manufacture products according to the JEDEC SDRAM
standard, did 1t?

A. That"s correct, yes.

Q. And Rambus never had any plans to license the
JEDEC -- strike that.

Rambus never had any plans to manufacture
the -- manufacture devices made according to the JEDEC
DDR SDRAM standard, did it?

A. 1 believe that"s correct.

Q. Rambus was promoting its RDRAM architecture,
wasn"t 1t?

A. To who?

Q. To various companies.

A. Yes, that"s correct.

Q. 1t would be fair to say, wouldn®"t it, that
Rambus viewed the potential JEDEC standards as a source
of competition for RDRAM?

A. I™m not sure that we viewed any standards as a
source of competition.

Q. Well, Rambus certainly thought that if DDR
SDRAM actually became a product, it had the potential
to hurt Rambus®™ business, didn"t it?

A. 1 believe that"s true, yes.
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Q. So, Rambus perceived DDR SDRAMs to be a
potential threat?
A. 1 certainly believe that some people there
believed that, yes.
Q. Now, you believed that as well, didn"t you?
A. 1 think I did at some point In time.
JUDGE McGUIRE: All right, now, I want to

clarify that answer. When you said that you believe
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MR. PERRY: Vague as to which standard, Your
Honor.

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, I"m attempting to --

JUDGE McGUIRE: Sustained.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. You didn*t have any particular interest in
seeing JEDEC succeed in developing a widely used
standard for SDRAM, did you?

A. 1 think that answer is correct, yes.

Q. You also didn"t have any interest in seeing
JEDEC succeed in developing a widely used standard for
DDR SDRAM, did you?

A. 1 was not interested in seeing potential
competitive devices appear on the market.

Q. In fact, you actually hoped that JEDEC would
fail to produce an SDRAM standard, didn®t you?

A. 1 don"t think 1 was so concerned about the
standard as 1 was the devices.

Q. Well, in fact, very shortly after you attended
the first JEDEC meeting in April 1992, you wrote an
email to others in Rambus about dissension among JEDEC
members, didn®t you?

A. 1 think that was a portion of another email,
but I believe 1 did speak to that issue, yes.

Q. And you suggested that Rambus consider leaking
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this dissension to the press, right?
A. Yes, sir, 1 did. May I explain something about
my answer there?
Q. Let me show you a document, 1 have a few other

questions, and if that allows you to explain, you can
explain at that point; otherwise, your counsel will ask
you follow-up questions.

May 1 approach, Your Honor?

JUDGE McGUIRE: Go ahead.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked as
CX-1708. This is the email that you were referring to
in your earlier answer, right?

A. 1 believe that"s correct, yes.

Q. And if I could ask you to turn, please, to page
5 of CX-1708.

A. Yes.

Q. Now, you"ll see the caption at the top of that
page is Dissension in the JC42 Meeting?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Would it be fair to say that the first two
paragraphs describe different positions taken by
certain individuals?

A. Yes, sir, that"s right.

Q. If 1 could direct your attention to the third
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paragraph, it reads, "l think we should make sure this
gets leaked to the press. Something like RIFT forms in
JEDEC SDRAM working group: Major system houses now
leaning away from JC42 committee recommendation."
Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And continuing in the next paragraph, "Now if
we can get this on the front page of EETimes and the
next issue of Nis. Jead9tskhpADo you 0 050. fron sure thelp ourx

A. Yes, sir, | do.
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representation of what was going on within JEDEC that
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information to the press, you could be censured by
JEDEC, right?

A. 1 made that comment in here, that I thought
that was a possibility.

Q. In fact, you thought it was even a possibility
that you could be tossed out of JEDEC for leaking
information to the press. Isn"t that right?

A. 1 thought that was a possibility. And this

never actually ended up happening.

Q. Now, in your understanding, Rambus joined JEDEC
in order to learn what the competition was working on
and what sort of issues would arise when designing
SDRAMs and SGRAMs, right?

A. 1 think that was part of the reason.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked as
CX-837. This is an email that you sent to the
executive group at Rambus. Is that correct?

A. Yes, that"s correct, among other people.

Q. And you also sent it to Tony Diepenbrock?

A. That"s correct, as well as a copy to myself.

Q. And you sent this on September 23, 19957

A. That"s the date that"s marked on it.
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Q. If 1 could direct your attention to the second
to last paragraph, and you®re responding to comments
from Tony Diepenbrock concerning patent position within
standards organizations. 1Is that right?

A. I™m sorry, could you ask the question again? |
just had to read the paragraph.

Q. Yes. You were responding to comments that Tony

Diepenbrock had made regarding the Rambus® patent

position within standards organizations. Isn"t that
right?

A. 1 think that"s largely true. 1°m not sure that
that"s all of what the purpose was of this -- of this
memo .

Q. Wwell, we"ll come back to this memo later and
discuss i1t In more detail at that point. For current
purposes, | want to focus your attention on the second
sentence of that paragraph. It reads, "At the time we
began attending JEDEC we did so to learn what the
competition was working on and what sort of performance
systems using that technology would be able to achieve
and what sort of issues would arise when designing with
the devices (primarily SDRAM/SGRAM).™

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, 1 do.

Q. And that"s what you wrote to the executive
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group in September 19957

A. Yes.

Q. Now, by the time that Rambus left JEDEC, if not
sooner, you recognized that the most valuable patents
are the ones that must be used iIn order to be 1in
compliance with the standard, correct?

A. Yeah, assuming that the -- that the product
that was standardized was of some commercial value.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Go ahead.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document that"s
been marked as CX-903. This is an email that you sent
in September of 19 -- excuse me, in August of 1996.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Now, the "To™ line here has been blanked out,
so we are unable to tell from this document who you
sent the document to, but the subject is "Rambus
Standards Committee."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, in this document, you were responding to a
proposal to create a Rambus standards committee. Is

that right?
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A. I believe that"s correct.

Q. And the proposal was to create a standards
committee for Rambus® partners relating to Rambus
technology?

A. 1 --you know, I don*"t think 1 would really

characterize i1t that way.

Q. Well, let me direct your attention to the third
paragraph, the first sentence. It reads, "This is
about pacification of our partners, pure and simple.™

Do you see that?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Now, the proposed standards committee you
referred to internally at Rambus at REDEC, R E D E C.
Is that right?

A. 1 have heard that name used In connection with
this proposal.

Q. And you wrote this email to others within
Rambus offering your assessment of the proposed Rambus
standards organization. Is that right?

A. 1 would really call it sort of my opinion about
what 1 thought about the proposal.

Q. Is it fair to say that you didn"t think very
highly of the proposal?

A. 1 was not in favor of it.

Q. If 1 could direct your attention to the second
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page, the third paragraph from the bottom. The first
sentence there, you write, "The most valuable patents
are ones that must be used in order to be in compliance
with the standard.™

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And the reason they“"re valuable is that such
patents cannot be avoided. 1Is that right?

A. Well, in the situation to where you want to
build a device that®"s compliant with the standard,
whatever the standard 1is.

Q. Okay, well, that"s what you wrote in the very
next sentence, isn"t it? Let me read that sentence for
you. "Unlike implementation patents which may or may
not be required for the job -- to get the job done,
ones that must be used cannot be avoided.™

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Now, you also knew that to the extent possible,
the job of JEDEC was to create standards that steer
clear of patents that must be used to be in compliance
with the standard, right?

A. Well, 1 wrote that, yes.

Q. Are you referring now to the next sentence in

your email?
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A. I™m sorry, I"m having a hard time hearing you.

Q. Well, let me read the next sentence for you.
It"s, again, in the third paragraph from the bottom of
page 2 of CX-903.

"The job of JEDEC is to create standards which
steer clear of patents which must be used to be iIn
compliance with the standard whenever possible.™

Do you see that?

A. Yes, 1 do.

Q. And again, that"s what you wrote in your email
as of August of 19967

A. Yes.

Q. Now, you also recognized that the concept of
open standards was at odds with Rambus® business model,
right?

A. 1 -- it really depends on what"s meant by "open
standards,™ but certainly one interpretation of "open
standards'™ could be potentially at odds with Rambus*
business model.

Q. Well, by "open standards,'™ you meant standards
that were offered in public domain to any company who
wanted to use it, right?

MR. PERRY: Objection, it"s vague as to whether
he*s talking about this particular document where he

uses that term or not.
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JUDGE McGUIRE: Sustained.
BY MR. OLIVER:
Q. In writing this document, you meant standards

that were offered in the public domain to any company
that wanted to use them, right?

A. I"m sorry, I"m having a hard time following
your question.

Q. My question is, at the time that you wrote
CX-903 in August of 1996, at that time, you understood
"open standards™ to mean standards that were offered in

the public domain to any company that wanted to use it,

right?
A. 1 think that"s basically correct.
Q. In other words, a standard that"s free of

royalties, right?
A. I™m not sure that that"s always the case.
MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
JUDGE McGUIRE: You may.
MR. OLIVER: 1 believe this will not be on the
screen.
BY MR. OLIVER:
Q. Mr. Crisp, do you recall being deposed in
connection with the FTC matter?
A. I™m sorry, would you ask the question again?

Q. Do you recall being deposed in connection with
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this FTC matter?

A. Yes, I do, sir.

Q. Do you recall that I took your deposition iIn
San Francisco?

A. That"s correct, 1 do.

Q. I17ve handed you a copy of the transcript from
that deposition, if I could ask you to turn, please, to
page 30.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Could we state just so it"s
clear the date of this deposition, Mr. Oliver?

MR. OLIVER: Yes, Your Honor, the deposition
was conducted on February 14, 2003.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Thank you.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. And if I could ask you to look then on page 30,
beginning at line 24, continuing to 31, line 3.

"QUESTION: In other words, a standard that is
free of royalties?

"ANSWER: I think that"s pretty close to what 1
would think that that means. 1 think that"s
fundamentally at odds with the business of licensing
technology."”

Do you see that?

A. Yes, | do see that. 1 wanted to read some of

the rest of it so 1 could get context of what it was we
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were discussing. (Document review.) Okay.

Q. Are you finished?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, in August 1996, you also
recognized that if Rambus were to create a standards
organization that was modeled on JEDEC, participants
would have an expectation that the resulting work would
be free of any patent encumbrance, right?

A. 1 think that"s generally what 1 had believed at
that time that 1 would have expected the participants
to believe.

Q. Now, between 1991 and 1996, you knew that JEDEC
was associated with the Electronic Industries
Association?

A. 1 believe 1 knew that, yes.

Q. And the Electronic Industries Association is
also known as EIA. Is that right?

A. That"s my understanding.

Q. You also understood during that time period
that meetings of JEDEC committees and subcommittees
were conducted iIn accordance with the EIA Legal Guides?

A. 1 think It was a point in time when 1 had that
understanding.

Q. A point in time between 1991 and 19967?

A. That"s correct, sir.
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Q. Now, the EIA Legal Guides provided that all
standardization programs shall be carried on in good
faith, right?

MR. PERRY: Objection, Your Honor, lacks
foundation that he ever saw them, and the document
speaks for itself.

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, I"m asking for his
understanding based on his attendance at JEDEC meetings
for four years.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Overruled.

THE WITNESS: 1 think I"ve seen that sentence
in an EIA manual or something that means something very
close to that.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach?

JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, 1 have handed you a document that"s
been marked as CX-204, ask you to turn, please, to page
6 -- excuse me, it would be -- looking at the numbers
at the lower right-hand corner, it would be page 5. If
I could direct your attention to the upper left-hand
corner, it"s the top of internal page 6, the caption C,
Basic Rules for Conducting Programs.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

For The Record, Inc.Waldorf, Maryland(301) 870-8025



2947
2947

Q. Underneath that, it reads, "All EIA
standardization programs shall be conducted in
accordance with the following basic rules:

"One, they shall be carried on in good faith
under policies and procedures which will assure
fairness and unrestricted participation.”

Do you see that?

A. Yes, I do, sir.

Q. Does that refresh your recollection as to where
you had seen this before?

A. Yes, I -- 1 just have seen this very recently.

Q. But you testified earlier you were aware of
this between 1991 and 1996. |Isn"t that correct?

A. 1 think I made that testimony.

Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, you were also aware that JEDEC
standardization programs shall not result in
restricting competition, giving a competitive advantage
to any manufacturer or excluding competitors from the
market, right?

A. 1 see that here in this document.

Q. Now, JEDEC also followed EIA rules regarding
use of patents. Isn"t that right?

A. I"m sorry, I"m having a hard time hearing your
questions with the echoes in the room.

Q. JEDEC also followed EIA rules regarding use of
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patents. Isn"t that right?

A. 1 believe that they were controlled by EIA
rules. Whether or not they always followed them, 1
really don®"t know.

Q. Well, the EIA rules stated that requirements in
EIA standards which called for the use of patented
items should be avoided, right?

A. 1 believe that"s correct.

Q. EIA rules also provided that no program of
standardization should refer to a product on which
there is a known patent unless all the technical
information covered by the patent is known to the
committee. 1Is that right?

A. 1 believe that"s correct.

Q. Now, focusing again on the time period from May
of 1992 through the end of 1995, you were attending the
42 .3 subcommittee meetings as the primary
representative of JEDEC -- primary representative of
Rambus. 1Is that right?

A. What time period again?

Q. May of 1992 through the end of 1995.

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. And i1t"s fair to say that during that time
period, you went to almost every meeting of the 42.3

subcommittee?
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the policy. 1 don"t remember exactly what it was that
he said. 1It"s been a long time.

Q. Well, he also discussed the disclosure
obligation, didn*t he?

A. 1 -- you know, I don®t remember precisely.
That sounds about right, but 1t -- it may be that he
didn*"t always.

Q. And as part of the items that he showed that
you just referred to, he included something he called
the patent tracking list. Isn"t that right?

A. 1 do remember a patent tracking list.

Q. And that was a list of certain items that
members had disclosed at committee meetings?

A. I™m not sure that it was only members that had
disclosed the items, and I"m not sure it occurred only
at meetings, but it did include items that the
committee was somehow or another made aware of.

Q. And you recall that that list includes not just
patents, but also patent applications?

A. 1 think 1t included a few patent applications
from my recollection.

Q. Now, in addition to the presentations made by
Mr. Townsend and the list of patents and applications
disclosed, you also came to learn about the patent

policy through the various minutes that were
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You recognize this as a sample of one of the sign-in
sheets that was used during the time you were attending
meetings?

A. You know, it could be, and it may be a
different one. 1 think there were some different
sign-in sheets that were used at different points in
time. I1°m sorry, my recollection of what they said
isn"t real good these days. 1It"s been a long time
since 1 went to any of those meetings.

Q. Well, you recognize this as a sign-in sheet
that was used during at least some of the meetings that
you attended. Isn"t that right?

A. You mean the top page?

Q. Yes.

A. You know, 1 just really don®t remember. It
generally looks like what 1 remember them looking like,
but I can*t tell you one way or the other i1f this sheet
was used.

Q. If 1 could direct your attention to the
language iIn the box above the caption Name, Status,
Company, Phone and Fax, and if I could direct you to
the text beginning in the second line. It reads,
"Subjects involving patentable or patented items shall
conform to EIA policy (reverse side). Consult the EIA

General Counsel about any doubtful question.™
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A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.
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patent applications. Isn"t that right?

A. Well, 1 believe there may have been some
notation in those emails that some presenters may have
disclosed some patent applications or other people may
have disclosed some patents. | think I have a general
recollection that that -- were -- that sort of
information was in some of the emails.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document that"s
been marked as CX-672. It bears the caption at the top
underneath SDRAM, "'Subject: JEDEC Meeting Notes 2/27,
2/28, To: Staff, To: Garrett,” and if you look on
page 2, the very last word is "Billy."

Do you recognize this as an email that was sent
by Billy Garrett?

A. 1 believe so, yes.

Q. And you were part of the Rambus staff as of
February 19927

A. Yes, sir, | was.

Q. So, you would have received the email at the

time that Mr. Garrett sent this Q. And you were pauisXYtipjece so
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The email is a summary of the events at the
February 1992 JEDEC meeting. |Is that right?

A. Well, it"s what Mr. Garrett chose to summarize.

Q. Okay. So, it"s the events at the meeting that
Mr. Garrett thought would be of interest to the members
of Rambus. Is that right?

A. Well, 1 wouldn™t say it quite that way. |1
think this was what Mr. Garrett felt like writing
about.

Q. Now, one of the things that Mr. Garrett told
everybody back at Rambus from the February 1992 JEDEC
meeting is Fujitsu indicated that they do have patents
applied for, but they will comply with the JEDEC
requirements to make it a standard, with three
exclamation points.

Do you see that?

A. Yeah, 1 see that Fujitsu had submitted a
proposal and made that comment attached with it, yes.
Q. So, this, again, is one of the things that
Billy Garrett chose to inform all members of Rambus

about. Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Go ahead.
BY MR. OLIVER:
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Q. I17ve handed you a document marked as CX-685.
It"s a one-page document, appears to be an email from

David Mooring to a number of individuals, including

you.
Do you see that?
A. Yes, sir, | do.
Q. And this email is written In December 19927
A. That"s what the date is on 1t. | think that"s
right.

Q. And i1f you look at the sixth line, the subject
iIs "JEDEC Notes."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Now, you recognize this as being an email sent
by David Mooring following his attendance at a JEDEC
meeting?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And that was the December 1992 JEDEC meeting.
Is that right?

A. Well, it was the December 1992 JEDEC JC-42
meeting. There may have been some other JEDEC meetings
that occurred. That"s what this one was for.

Q. Okay, fair enough.

You also attended that JC-42 committee meeting

in December 1992. Isn"t that right?
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A. Yes, | was there for at least part of it.

Q. And among others to whom David Mooring sent
this email was CEO and president Geoff Tate.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Founder and member of the board of directors,
Mike Farmwald. Do you see him?

A. Yes, I do, sir.

Q. And the "To" list also includes vice president
Allen Roberts?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. Now, Mr. Mooring informed these individuals
that at the JEDEC meeting IBM raised the issue that
they were aware that some voting JEDEC attendees have
patents pending on SDRAMs that they have not made the
committee aware of. They will come to the next meeting
with a list of the offenders.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And again, that is one of the items that David
Mooring chose to inform others at Rambus, including the
CEO and the vice president, Allen Roberts. Isn"t that
right?

A. Apparently so. 1It"s in his email.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach?
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JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document that"s
been marked as CX-711. Before we get to this specific
email I would like to talk about in this connection,
let"s talk just for a moment about the origins, if you
will, of this document.

This document is a collection of emails that
you sent and received between 1993 and 1996. Is that
correct?

A. I"m not sure of the actual end dates, but they
were generally emails that | either sent or received
over some period of time. 1 think 1t includes those

end dates, but there may be some other ones in here.
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vice president Mooring and vice president Roberts, you
wrote, "Tl was chastised for not informing JEDEC that
it had a 1987 patent on quad CAS devices. These allow
bit write capability which is useful in building x36
SIMMs . ™

Do you see that?

A. Yes, 1 do.

Q. Then you write, "The bottom line is that all
quad CAS devices will be removed from the standard
21C."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, | do.

Q. Now, 21C is a standard -- i1s the JEDEC standard
that covered SDRAMs, right?

A. 1™m not sure what all 1t covered. 1 seem to
recall that was a fairly thick binder that had a lot of
different kinds of standards in it.

Q. Among the things that it covered by October
1993 was SDRAMs. 1Isn"t that right?

A. 1 would expect that. 1 don"t know that with
certainty.

Q. And do you recall that the issue of the Texas
Instruments patent came to light at this October 199 --
excuse me, September of 1993 JEDEC meeting because

Texas Instruments had sued Micron for patent
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infringement? Isn"t that right?

A. You know, 1 generally recall some sequence of
events like that. 1°m not sure precisely how it came
to light, but that sounds approximately what 1
remember.

Q. Now, when you saw this discussion of Texas
Instruments®™ failure to disclose a patent at JEDEC,
that really captured your attention, didn"t it?

A. Well, only iIn the sense that I chose to put
this In my report.

Q. Well, after this meeting, after you saw this
discussion at JEDEC, you contacted Rambus® patent
counsel, Lester Vincent, and asked him to send you
copies of the Texas Instruments patents, didn"t you?

A. Texas Instruments patents? |1 don"t believe
that 1 asked for that.

Q. You also asked Mr. Vincent to send you a copy
of the complaints and the docket sheets from the
litigation between Texas Instruments and Micron, didn"t
you?

A. I had asked him to send me some information
regarding litigation between Tl and Micron, but I don"t
believe it had anything to do with this.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Go ahead.
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BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked as
CX-1967. These are handwritten notes of Mr. Lester
Vincent. If you see the top lines, "Telecon,'™ standing
for teleconference, "w/Richard Crisp,™ and you"ll see
on the right-hand side, "October 29, 1993."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, I do, sir.

Q. In other words, this was approximately three
weeks after you wrote your email to CEO and president
Geoff Tate, vice president Mooring and vice president
Roberts describing the discussion at JEDEC concerning
the litigation between Texas Instruments and Micron,
right?

A. 1 think that"s the right time frame, yes In other words, t
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Q. And then under that, "Micron sued Tl in Boise,
Idaho™?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And even under that, "TIl sued Micron
Semiconductor in Marshall, Texas.™

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then underneath that, arrow, "Would like
copies of complaints.™

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, 1 do.

Q. Does that refresh your recollection that in
late October 1993 you requested that Rambus patent
counsel Lester Vincent provide you with copies of six
Texas Instruments patents and complaints in litigation
between Tl and Micron?

A. 1t only partially refreshes my recollection. |
remember asking Mr. Vincent for him to tell me about
the complaints in the Tl versus Micron case in
Marshall, Texas, because I had a business interest in
what the products were that were under suit, because I
was interested in using that to help me with my
marketing with Micron.

Q. Now, the controversy at JEDEC concerning the
Texas Instruments patents on quad CAS continued at the

following meetings, didn"t it?

For The Record, Inc.Waldorf, Maryland(301) 870-8025



2965

2965
A. 1 don"t have any recollection of that. It may
have. 1 just simply don"t remember. 1It"s been a long

time ago.

Q. Let me ask you to take a look back again at
CX-711. 1t°"s the collection of emails that 1 just
handed you. If 1 could ask you to turn, please, to
page 15 in CX-711, and 1°d like to direct your
attention to the bottom of this page.

Do you see that after a break about
three-quarters of the way down the page, there®s what
appears to be a caption for an email?

A. Yes, sir, | see that.

Q. And does that indicate that there was a new
email beginning at the bottom of page 15 and carrying
over to the following pages?

A. Yes, sir, | believe that"s what i1t indicates.

Q. Now, do you recognize the email at the bottom
of page 15 as another email that you sent?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And this one you sent to CEO and president
Geoffrey Tate?

A. Yes, sir, that"s right.

Q. And you also sent it to the entire marketing
group at Rambus. Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.
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Q. It was sent on March 9, 19947?
A. That"s the date on it, yes, sir.
Q. And the subject is, "JEDEC day 2"7?
A. Yes, sir, that"s right.
Q. If 1 could direct your attention to the next
page, please, page 16, and specifically to the -- to

the second paragraph on this page. The first sentence
reads, ""The meeting opened with a lot of controversy
regarding Patents.”

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, 1 do.

Q. Does this refresh your recollection that there
was continuing discussion of the Texas Instruments and
Micron litigation at the March 1994 JEDEC meeting?

A. Yes, sir, it does.

Q. Now, about halfway down the page, there"s a
sentence that begins, "Micron says the policy."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, 1 do.

Q. Let me read those couple of sentences.

"Micron says the policy exists due to
anti-trust concerns. That if a group of companies
wanted to keep out competition they could agree amongst
themselves to standardize something that is patented

and not license those that they do not want to compete
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with."
Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Now, this is a statement that you wrote to CEO
Geoff Tate at this time. Isn"t that right?

A. Right, this is talking about a JEDEC policy
about members testifying in trials.

Q. This is also something that you wrote to the
entire marketing group at -- at Rambus?

A. Yes, sir, that"s right.

Q. If 1 could direct your attention to the last
sentence that we just read, the statement you wrote is
they could agree amongst themselves to standardize
something.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So, iIn other words, you were writing about
standard-setting activities In this sentence, weren"t
you?

A. Actually, I"m writing about what Micron said in
the meeting, and they were speaking to the issue of
people testifying in trials such as the TI-Micron
trial. | think I"m just parroting what | heard people
say in the meeting.

Q. The two sentences that 1 just read to you,
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there is nothing in there about testifying at trial, is
there?

A. I™m sorry, could you ask the question again?
Again, the echoes are a problem.

Q. In the two sentences that 1"ve just read for
you, there is nothing in those two sentences concerning
testifying at trial, is there?

A. Well, they"re out of context, sir. 1 think if
you read the few lines ahead of i1t starting with the
number 2, then you see that that"s what they-re
speaking to. But you"re right, yes, they are not --
these sentences themselves aren"t speaking of
testifying at trials, but they"re -- they"re in the
context of that discussion --

Q. And --

A. -- that I have captured in these notes at the
meeting.

Q. The sentences do speak about standardizing
something. Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. And they speak about standardizing something
that i1s patented, right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. And they speak about standardizing something

that i1s patented and then not licensing other
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companies. Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, that"s correct.

Q. Now, i1t would be fair to say that the
discussion that took place within JEDEC concerning this
issue would be nasty?

A. I believe that"s what | said iIn here.

Q. And do you recall that -- actually, let me
direct your attention about two-thirds of the way down,
there®s a reference to Sussman.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, "Sussman mentioned"?

Q. Yes.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is that Howard Sussman?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. Okay. And do you see there that your notes
indicate that Mr. Sussman made a motion that TI
withdraw from JEDEC pending resolution of the patent
issue?

A. Yes, sir, | see that.

Q. And again, these are all events that you chose
to report back home to CEO and president Geoffrey Tate
and to the entire marketing group. Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. Now, at the March 1994 JEDEC meeting, Texas
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Instruments requested clarification of the JEDEC patent
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Q. Does this refresh your recollection that about
two months after the March 1994 discussions in JEDEC,
John Kelly prepared a response to Texas Instruments?

A. Yes, sir, I guess it does. | mean, | see the
document, and I think it speaks for itself.

Q. The document indicates that it was circulated
to all JC-42 committee members, right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s right.

Q. If 1 could direct your attention to the second
page, please, and specifically to the second paragraph,
and this is a portion of the memorandum written by John
Kelly, right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s right.

Q. The second paragraph reads, "Written assurances
must be provided by the patent holder when it appears

to the committee that the candidate standard may

require the use of a patented invention.”™ The words
"may require” are underlined. "It Is not necessary

that the committee make a factual determination that
the use of the patented invention is, in fact, required
to meet the standard.”
Do you see that?
A. Yes, sir, 1 do.
Q. And do you recall that this was Mr. Kelly®s

response to Texas Instruments following the March 1994
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meeting?

A. 1 have no reason to dispute that. 1 don"t have
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down, Patent Policy?

A. Yes, sir, | see that.

Q. And then the second paragraph under that,
there"s a reference to some Tl graphics patents that
were shown?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the paragraph under that, Tl presented a
four-page clarification to the committee on their
interpretation of the patent policy? Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And then if you look at the following three
paragraphs, do you understand that to be a continuing
discussion of this issue?

A. I™m sorry, would you ask the question again?

Q. Yes. 1 ask you to look at the following three
paragraphs, that would be the last three paragraphs on
page 4 of JX-19, and do you recognize that to be a
summary of the continuing discussion of the Texas
Instruments patent issue?

A. 1 think that"s accurate. There may have been
more, but this is what they chose to put in the
minutes.

Q. Well, let me direct your attention to the third
to last paragraph on page 4. ™"Sanyo moved to have TI

withdraw from the Committee activity until the legal
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aspects of the proposal are reviewed. The motion was
tabled.™
Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Now, do you recall that at this time the Sanyo
representative was Mr. Howard Sussman?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. And that -- would it be fair to say that that
reflects the same event that was described in your
email to CEO Geoff Tate and the marketing group?

A. In which email?

Q. In your March 9, 1994 email to CEO Geoffrey
Tate and the marketing group.

A. Maybe 1 should have a look at it again to make
sure that we"re speaking to the same email.

Q. Okay, that would be CX-711, and we"re looking
at the email that begins at the bottom of page 15 and
carries over to page 16.

A. Yes, sir, that"s right. That was the same
event.

Q. And if I could direct your attention back to
JX-19, the bottom of page 4.

A. Yes, sir, I"m there.

Q. And the last paragraph on that page reads,

"Applicability of patents to use of JEDEC standards was
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discussed. The issue is warning, IBM noted. Failure
to disclose a patent prevents the Committee from
considering the standard."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, 1 do.

Q. And then if I could ask you to turn to the top
of page 5, I believe this refers to the issue | asked
you about earlier. That reads, "The Committee was
asked if the patent policy is clear.”

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do see that.

Q. And even after that, "The Committee felt it was
clear.”

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | see that, too.

Q. Now, does this refresh your recollection that
even without waiting for any clarification from general
counsel John Kelly, committee members expressed the
opinion at the March 1994 JEDEC meeting that the JEDEC
patent policy was clear?

A. Well, that"s what this report says. I°'m not
sure that the person writing this had any way to know
exactly what people thought, but maybe this was a
majority of the people or something like that. |

really can®t speak to that.
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Q. Well, you were present at this meeting, weren"t
you?

A. Well, I"m on the roster, and I think I was
present during this portion of 1t. I -- you know, 1
just really don®t remember this all very well. It"s
been a long time, sir.

Q. Now, it would be fair to say, wouldn"t it, that
you also came to understand the JEDEC patent policy as
a result of this discussion that we*ve been looking at
as to whether Texas Instruments had made proper
disclosures?

A. You know, there were a lot of things that I saw
in JEDEC meetings that helped me form my belief as to
what the policy was. Perhaps this was one of them.

Q. Now, subsequently, you also received a copy of
the JEDEC manual, right?

MR. PERRY: Vague as to which manual, Your
Honor.

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, I can clarify the
question.

JUDGE McGUIRE: All right, restate.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Subsequently, you also received a copy of the
JEDEC 21-1 Manual. Isn"t that right?

A. 1 think 1t was, you know, more than a year
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after this.

Q. But you did receive a copy of the 21-1 Manual,
right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. While you were still attending JEDEC meetings?

A. Yes, sir, that"s also correct.

Q. And what happened was you requested a copy of
whatever the users®™ manual or the members® manual was,
right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. And what they gave you was the 21-1 Manual,
right?

A. 1 seem to remember that"s which -- that"s one
of the two manuals | was given.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Go ahead.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document that"s
been marked as CX-208A. The document bears numbers
towards the lower right-hand corner beginning with R
173458.

Do you see that?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Let me represent to you that these documents

indicate that -- excuse me, these numbers iIndicate that
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this document was produced from Rambus® files. The
document bears the title JEDEC Manual of Organization
and Procedure, the number 21-1, and the date October
1993.

Now, Mr. Crisp, this is the document that you
received from JEDEC, right?

A. 1 believe that"s correct.

Q. Now, when you received CX-208A, you looked
through 1t, right?

A. Yes, sir, I -- 1 certainly looked through
portions of it.

Q. And you read parts of it?

A. Yes, sir, that"s right.

Q. And you understood that the JEDEC 21-1 Manual
required disclosure of not only patents but also patent
applications if they related to the work of the
committee. Isn"t that right?

A. Well, my understanding was the sponsors or the
presenters had that obligation.

Q. That"s not what you testified to earlier, is
it?

A. Maybe you could show me that testimony.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach?
JUDGE McGUIRE: You may.
BY MR. OLIVER:
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Q. Mr. Crisp, do you recall being deposed in
connection with the Micron litigation?
A. Yes, sir, 1 recall being deposed on more than

one occasion.
Q. Okay. And do you recognize what I"ve just
handed you as your transcript from the August 10, 2001

deposition in the Micron litigation?

A. Yes, sir, 1 do.
Q. If 1 could ask you to turn, please, to page
951. 1"m going to read to you starting at line 24,

carrying over to 952, line 3. The testimony there
reads:

"QUESTION: And when you got it and read it
then, i1t was clear that the manual required disclosure
of both patents and patent applications, wasn"t 1t?

"ANSWER: Yes, if they related to the work of
the committee.™

Do you see that?

A. Let me read a little bit of this to get the
context of what this was about. (Document review.)

Yes, you now may -- yes, the question agai A. YeD?
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do you choose to do that at this point or if you want
you can do it during your cross examination?

MR. PERRY: Your Honor, 1°d like to do just one
question and answer, if 1 could.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Go ahead, Mr. Perry.

MR. PERRY: From page 855 --

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, if I could, with
previous witnesses | believe that your ruling has been
that that®s something that could be done on cross or
redirect.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Well, if it"s just one
question, I"m going to let him go ahead and do it so we
can clarify it at this point.

MR. PERRY: Page 855, line 17, Mr. Crisp:

"QUESTION: And what conclusions did you draw
from reading that reference to first presentations?”

I believe they"re talking about the members-
manual .

"ANSWER: That the presenter or the sponsoring
company that was making the presentation were asked to
reveal at that time any existing or pending or
prospective patents that may apply to the proposal at
hand."

Thank you.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Okay, noted.
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All right, Mr. Oliver, you may proceed.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, after reviewing the manual, you
understood that patent applications had to be disclosed
under JEDEC patent policy. Isn"t that right?

A. Well, in some circumstances | did, yes.

Q. Now, when you received the JEDEC 21-1 Manual in
1995, that was not the first time that you had seen the
language iIn there about pending patents, was it?

A. Seen the language in where?

Q. In the 21-1 Manual.

A. 1 don"t think 1 testified that I had ever seen
the 21-1 Manual prior to that date in 1995 when I
received it.

Q. No, my question was that you had seen the same
language previously, hadn®t you?

A. 1 don"t know if I had seen exactly that
language. 1°ve seen different JEDEC policies on
overhead slides at different points in time, and I"ve
seen drafts and I1°ve seen policies and I°ve seen drafts
of policies and various other things. So, I don"t have
a specific recollection of seeing precisely that
language, but it"s possible that 1 did.

Q. JEDEC published the 21-1 version of i1ts manual
in October 1993. Is that right?
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A. Well, that"s the date that®"s on this -- on this
document, and 1 would assume that 1t"s correct.

Q. But the revisions to the version of the manual
published in October of 1993 were discussed at JEDEC
meetings during the course of 1992. Isn"t that right?

A. What I remember being discussed in 1992 were
some proposed policy changes or some clarifications. |
think they weren®t represented as anything other than
drafts that were yet to be approved by the council.

Q. Well, in fact, the new language of the 21-1
Manual was shown at the December 1992 42_.3 subcommittee
meeting, wasn"t it?

A. 1 remember a draft being shown. 1"m not sure
if that"s the exact wording that made it into the
manual or not. It"s possible that it was. 1 just
simply can®t remember.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Go ahead.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked as
JX-14_. 1711 give you a moment to get settled.

JX-14 is the minutes from the December 1992
JC-42.3 subcommittee meeting.
A. Okay.

Q. Now, you attended the 42.3 subcommittee meeting
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in December 1992, right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. In fact, if you look on the first page about
two-thirds of the way down the list of names, your name
appears there?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. Now, David Mooring, the vice president of

Rambus, also attended this meeting, didn*t he?

A. Well, 1 believe he did, but I don"t -- for some
reason, | don"t see his name listed on the roster,
but -- 1 mean, 1 know these rosters weren"t always
accurate.

Q- You recall that earlier this morning you looked
at an email written by David Mooring containing his
notes of the December 1992 meeting?

A. That"s right. That"s why I agreed with you
that he attended.

Q. Now, at this December 1992 42.3 subcommittee
meeting, Mr. Townsend showed a number of pages from the
draft revised manual marked to show changes, didn"t he?

A. I™m sorry, | don"t remember. Perhaps you could
point me to it.

Q. Certainly. |If you could turn to page 21 of
JX-14. Actually, let me take a step back. Let me put

this In context first, and if 1 could ask you to turn
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first, please, to page 3. On page 3, there®"s an item
about halfway down, item number 5, Patent Policies.
Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And that paragraph reads, "A presentation was
made on the EIA patent policies by Mr. Townsend (See
Attachment A). The tracking list was shown and also
the draft of Appendix F of JEP-21H policy manual (See
Attachment B)."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Now, if I could ask you to turn, please, to
page 21 of JX-14. You"ll see that this bears a caption
Appendix F, Patent Policy Guidelines?

A. Yes, sir, that"s what i1t"s entitled.

Q. Does this refresh your recollection that this
iIs one of the slides that Mr. Townsend showed in the
December 1992 meeting?

A. 1 think he did, yes.

Q. And on page 21, if I can direct your attention
to the third paragraph, the statement there that reads,
"By i1ts terms, the Patent Policy applies with equal
force to situations involving the discovery of patents
that may be required for use of a standard subsequent

to i1ts adoption.”
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Do you see that?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. And again, this is one of the slides that Mr.

Townsend showed at the D